
 

 

 

Rescheduled Regular Meeting of the  

Board of Directors 
City of Texarkana, Arkansas 

216 Walnut Street 

Agenda - Tuesday, January 17, 2023 - 6:00 PM 

 

 

Call to Order 

Roll Call 

Invocation given by Assistant Mayor Terry Roberts 

Pledge of Allegiance led by Chief David Fletcher 

CITIZEN COMMUNICATION 

Please fill out a Citizen Communication Card with your name and contact information for the 

City Clerk's records. 

A limit of five (5) minutes per person is allotted for citizens to express their concerns to the 

Board of Directors, with a maximum of fifty (50) minutes reserved for Citizens 

Communication.   The Board of Directors cannot respond to citizens’ concerns during this time. 

Be respectful of the Board of Directors, city staff, and the public by refraining from abusive 

conduct, personal charges, or verbal attacks. 

CONSENT 

1. Approval of the minutes of the rescheduled regular meeting January 3, 2023.  (CCD) City 

Clerk Heather Soyars 

2. Adopt a Resolution authorizing and directing the City Manager to enter into a renewal 

agreement with the Texarkana Housing Authority for services of two (2) officers assigned 

from the Texarkana Arkansas Police Department for special patrols and enforcement 

operations on Housing Authority properties. (TAPD) Chief Kramm 

3. Adopt a Resolution Amending the FY2023 General Fund Budget to include the reallocation 

of FY2022 General Fund Budget for Road Projects. (PWD) Public Works Director Tyler 

Richards 

REGULAR 

4. Adopt an Ordinance to prescribe a method to rotate the position of Assistant Mayor among 

the members of the Board of Directors and change to a one-year term in the following 



 

sequence: Ward 1, Ward 2, Ward 6, Ward 4, Ward 5, Ward 3. (BOD) (This item added at the 

request of Director Laney Harris) 

5. Adopt an Ordinance repealing and superseding Ordinance No. 1-2023 and to approve the 

purchase of four (4) 2023 Chevrolet Tahoe with police packages. (TAPD) Assistant Chief 

Bobby Jordon  

An emergency clause is requested. An emergency clause requires a separate and distinct 

vote of the board and is valid only if there is a two-thirds vote of approval by the Board. 

6. Adopt an Ordinance authorizing the City Manager to purchase a three-year Microsoft 

Enterprise License Agreement for licenses used by all departments of the City of Texarkana, 

Arkansas, in an amount not to exceed the annual fee of $57,356.45. (TWU) IT Director 

Brandon Uselton 

An emergency clause is requested. An emergency clause requires a separate and distinct 

vote of the board and is valid only if there is a two-thirds vote of approval by the Board. 

BOARD OF DIRECTORS' COMMENTARY 

CITY MANAGER REPORT 

NEXT MEETING DATE: Monday, February 6, 2023  

ADJOURN 

 

2023 City Calendar 

Mardi Gras Parade - Saturday, February 18th - 4PM - 6PM 

Run the Line - Sunday, February 19th - 7AM - 12:30PM 

Texarkana TOGA – 525 E. Broad Street - April 13th – 16th – 6AM – 2PM 

Centennial Time Capsule/Sesquicentennial Festival – Downtown – April 14th – 15th 

Sesquicentennial Ball – July 8th 

Founders’ Week Celebration – December 4th – 10th  

 

 Texarkana Rec Center Calendar 

Ageless Grace - Mondays – 2PM – 3PM 

Gym Open - Mondays, Wednesdays & Fridays – 8AM - 7PM & Saturdays - 8AM – Noon 

Dance Fitness - Tuesdays - 6PM & Saturdays - 11AM 



 

CITY OF TEXARKANA, AR 

BOARD OF DIRECTORS 

AGENDA TITLE: Approval of the minutes of the rescheduled regular meeting January 3, 

2023.  (CCD) City Clerk Heather Soyars 

AGENDA DATE: January 17, 2023 

ITEM TYPE: Ordinance☐  Resolution☐  Other☒: Minutes 

DEPARTMENT: City Clerk Department 

PREPARED BY: Heather Soyars, City Clerk 

REQUEST: Approval of meeting minutes. 

EMERGENCY CLAUSE: N/A 

SUMMARY: Approval of meeting minutes 

EXPENSE REQUIRED: N/A 

AMOUNT BUDGETED: N/A 

APPROPRIATION 

REQUIRED: 

N/A 

RECOMMENDED 

ACTION: 

The City Clerk recommends Board approval. 

EXHIBITS: Meeting minutes. 

 



 

 

 

Rescheduled Regular Meeting of the  

Board of Directors 
City of Texarkana, Arkansas 

216 Walnut Street 

Minutes - Tuesday, January 03, 2023 - 6:00 PM 

 

 

Mayor Allen Brown called the meeting to order at 6:00 PM. 

Invocation given by Director Jeff Hart.   

Pledge of Allegiance led by Finance Director TyRhonda Henderson. 

OATH OF OFFICE 

Texarkana, Arkansas, District Judge Tommy Potter administered the Oath of Office to Ward 3 

Director Steven Hollibush, Ward 4 Ulysses Brewer, and Ward 5 Director Danny Jewell. 

PRESENT: Mayor Allen Brown, Ward 1 Director Terry Roberts, Ward 2 Director Laney Harris, 

Ward 3 Director Steven Hollibush, Ward 4 Director Ulysses Brewer, Ward 5 Director Danny 

Jewell, and Ward 6 Director Jeff Hart.  

ALSO PRESENT: City Manager Jay Ellington, City Attorney George Matteson, City Clerk 

Heather Soyars and Deputy City Clerk Jenny Narens.  

EXECUTIVE SESSION 

The Board of Directors entered Executive Session at 6:03 PM. 

The Mayor reconvened the meeting at 6:14 PM, and the following action was taken: 

1. Resolution No. 2023-1 made appointments to the Board of Directors’ boards, commissions, 

and committees. (CCD) City Clerk Heather Soyars 

  

A&P Commission (2) 
1.   Director Ulysses Brewer 

2.   Director Steven Hollibush 

Intergovernmental Advisor Committee (2) 
1.   Mayor Allen Brown 

2.   Director Ulysses Brewer 

 

Council of Governments Board (1) 
1.   Director Jeff Hart 

Metropolitan Planning Organization  

Policy Committee (2) 
1.   Director Steven Hollibush 

2.   Director Laney Harris  

 

Economic Development Committee (5) 
1.   Mayor Allen Brown 

2.   Director Steven Hollibush 

3.   Director Ulysses Brewer 

Public Utilities Committee (3) 
1.   Director Ulysses Brewer 

2.   Director Danny Jewell 

3.   Assistant Mayor Terry Roberts 



 

4.   Director Danny Jewell 

5.   Assistant Mayor Terry Roberts 

 

Emergency Medical Systems Committee (3) 
1.   Director Ulysses Brewer 

2.   Director Danny Jewell 

3.   Director Steven Hollibush 

Solid Waste Management Committee (3) 
1.   Mayor Allen Brown 

2.   Director Jeff Hart 

3.   Assistant Mayor Terry Roberts 

 

Employees Retirement System Committee (2) 
1.   Mayor Allen Brown 

2.   Director Laney Harris 

Texarkana Urban Transit District Board (3) 
1.   Director Steven Hollibush 

2.   Director Laney Harris 

3.   Director Jeff Hart 

 

Motion to adopt the resolution made by Director Hart, Seconded by Director Brewer. 

Voting Yea: Mayor Brown, Director Roberts, Director Harris, Director Hollibush, Director 

Brewer, Director Jewell, and Director Hart. 

The motion carried 7-0 and the Mayor declared the resolution adopted.  

2. Appointment of Assistant Mayor.  Director Brewer made the motion to appoint Director 

Roberts as Assistant Mayor, Seconded by Director Hart.   

Voting Yea: Mayor Brown, Director Roberts, Director Hollibush, Director Brewer, Director 

Jewell, and Director Hart.  

The motion carried 7-0 and the Mayor declared Director Roberts as Assistant Mayor. 

OATH OF OFFICE - ASSISTANT MAYOR 

Texarkana, Arkansas, District Judge Tommy Potter administered the Oath of Office to Assistant 

Mayor Roberts. 

CITIZEN COMMUNICATION 

No one came forward. 

PRESENTATION 

3. Presentation of the City of Texarkana, Arkansas Employee Service Awards. (ADMIN)  

 

Linda Matthews Admin. Secretary 5 Years 

Kenneth Taylor Bi-State 5 Years 

Adam Grayson TAFD 15 Years 

Diesre Henderson TWU 10 Years 

Richard Patterson TAPD 5 Years 

Bradley Winters TAPD 15 Years 

John Gibbert TAPD 30 Years 

 

 

 



 

CONSENT 

Director Hart made the motion to adopt the Consent agenda, Seconded by Director Hollibush.  

The motion carried and the following item was approved:  

4. Approval of the minutes of the regular meeting December 19, 2022.  (CCD) City Clerk 

Heather Soyars 

REGULAR 

5. Resolution No. 2023-2 approved the FY2023 BiState Justice Fund Budget, the amendments 

to the FY2022 BiState Justice Fund Budget, and an amendment to the FY2023 General Fund 

Budget. (FIN) Finance Director TyRhonda Henderson  

After a brief discussion, the motion to adopt the resolution made by Director Brewer, Seconded 

by Assistant Mayor Roberts.    

Voting Yea: Mayor Brown, Assistant Mayor Roberts, Director Harris, Director Hollibush, Director 

Brewer, Director Jewell, and Director Hart.  

The motion carried 7-0 and the Mayor declared the resolution adopted. 

 

6. Ordinance No. 1-2023 authorized the purchase of four (4) 2023 Chevrolet Tahoe Police 

Package vehicles for the Texarkana, Arkansas, Police Department. (TAPD) Assistant Police 

Chief Bobby Jordan  

After a brief discussion, the motion to suspend the rules and place the ordinance on its first reading 

in abbreviated form made by Assistant Mayor Roberts, Seconded by Director Brewer. 

Voting Yea: Mayor Brown, Assistant Mayor Roberts, Director Harris, Director Hollibush, Director 

Brewer, Director Jewell, and Director Hart.  

The motion carried 7-0 and the ordinance was read the first time in abbreviated form. 

Motion to suspend the rules and place the ordinance on its second reading in abbreviated form 

made by Director Brewer, Seconded by Director Hart. 

Voting Yea: Mayor Brown, Assistant Mayor Roberts, Director Harris, Director Hollibush, Director 

Brewer, Director Jewell, and Director Hart.  

The motion carried 7-0 and the ordinance was read the second time in abbreviated form. 

Motion to suspend the rules and place the ordinance on its third and final reading in abbreviated 

form made by Assistant Mayor Roberts, Seconded by Director Hollibush. 

Voting Yea: Mayor Brown, Assistant Mayor Roberts, Director Harris, Director Hollibush, Director 

Brewer, Director Jewell, and Director Hart.  

The motion carried 7-0 and the ordinance was read the third time in abbreviated form. 

Motion to adopt the ordinance made by Director Hart, Seconded by Director Hollibush. 

Mayor Brown asked if anyone would like to speak for or against this ordinance. 

No one came forward. 

Voting Yea: Mayor Brown, Assistant Mayor Roberts, Director Harris, Director Hollibush, Director 

Brewer, Director Jewell, and Director Hart.  



 

The motion carried 7-0 and the Mayor declared the ordinance adopted. 

An emergency clause is requested. An emergency clause requires a separate and distinct vote of 

the board and is valid only if there is a two-thirds vote of approval by the Board. 

Motion to enact the emergency clause made by Director Hart, Seconded by Director Hollibush. 

Mayor Brown asked if anyone would like to speak for or against the emergency clause. 

No one came forward. 

Voting Yea: Mayor Brown, Assistant Mayor Roberts, Director Harris, Director Hollibush, Director 

Brewer, Director Jewell, and Director Hart.  

The motion carried 7-0 and the Mayor declared the emergency clause enacted. 

BOARD OF DIRECTORS' COMMENTARY 

Director Hart welcomed Monjunis to Texarkana, Arkansas, and asked everyone to visit this 

restaurant.  

No one else came forward. 

CITY MANAGER REPORT 

City Manager E. Jay Ellington gave the following report: 

 Law Enforcement Day was January 9th, and Firefighter Recognition Day was January 27th. 

 Arkansas Business was recognizing the City and Advertising and Promotion (A&P) 

Commission at the Arkansas Municipal League (AML) Winter Conference for the Front 

Street Plaza Project. 

 He wanted to congratulate Executive Secretary Linda Matthews on her 5 years’ service 

award and wanted to let everyone know she worked 4 years prior to that part-time.  

 He thanked the Mayor and Board of Directors for their service to the City and the 

community.  

NEXT MEETING DATE: Tuesday, January 17, 2023 

ADJOURN 

Motion to adjourn made by Director Hart, Seconded by Assistant Mayor Roberts. 

Voting Yea: Mayor Brown, Assistant Mayor Roberts, Director Harris, Director Hollibush, Director 

Brewer, Director Jewell, and Director Hart. 

The motion carried 7-0 and the meeting adjourned at 6:32 PM. 

APPROVED this the 17th day of January 2023. 

 

____________________________ 

Allen L. Brown, Mayor 

 

____________________________ 

Heather Soyars, City Clerk 



 

CITY OF TEXARKANA, AR 

BOARD OF DIRECTORS 

AGENDA TITLE: Adopt a Resolution authorizing and directing the City Manager to enter 

into a renewal agreement with the Texarkana Housing Authority for 

services of two (2) officers assigned from the Texarkana Arkansas Police 

Department for special patrols and enforcement operations on Housing 

Authority properties. (TAPD) Chief Kramm 

AGENDA DATE: January 10, 2023 

ITEM TYPE: Ordinance☐  Resolution☒  Other☐:  

DEPARTMENT: Texarkana Arkansas Police Department 

PREPARED BY: Chief Kramm 

REQUEST: Texarkana housing contract for FY2023 

EMERGENCY CLAUSE: N/A 

SUMMARY: This purpose of this agenda item is to renew the existing contract with 

the Texarkana Housing Authority (THA) for FY2023.  Under the terms 

of the contract, the Texarkana Arkansas Police Department (TAPD) 

assigns two officers to conduct background investigations on applicants, 

patrol, investigate criminal offenses, and take enforcement actions on the 

properties administered by THA.  In return for these services, THA pays 

the City of Texarkana, Arkansas $130,000.00 for salary/fringe purposes. 

The contract contains allowance for annual increases in payment to the 

City not to exceed ten percent.  The Police Department recommends 

approval of this 1-year grant.  Failure to renew would require the City to 

pay for the salary/fringe benefits for two officers out of our General Fund 

or layoff of two officers. 

 

This is a long-standing contract between the City and THA which 

benefits the residents of the Housing Authority through additional police 

protection and provides the police department with valuable knowledge 

of activities on THA properties. 

 

EXPENSE REQUIRED: $0.00 

AMOUNT BUDGETED: $0.00 

APPROPRIATION 

REQUIRED: 

$0.00 



RECOMMENDED 

ACTION: 

Staff recommends this be placed on the consent agenda and approved by 

the Board of Directors. 

EXHIBITS: Texarkana Arkansas Housing Authority Contract 

 



RESOLUTION NO. __________ 

WHEREAS, the City contracts annually with the Texarkana Housing Authority 

for the services of two (2) officers assigned from the Texarkana Arkansas Police 

Department for special patrols and enforcement operations on the Housing Authority 

properties; and 

WHEREAS, the Texarkana Housing Authority desires to renew the contract for 

these services and has provided a proposed contract to the City which provides for the 

Texarkana Housing Authority to fund salaries in the total amount of $130,000.00 for the 

officers; and 

WHEREAS, the City Manager and staff recommend approval of the contract;  

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Board of Directors of the City 

of Texarkana, Arkansas, that the City Manager and other City staff, as required, are each 

authorized and directed to execute the contract proposed by the Texarkana Housing 

Authority for the services of two (2) police officers at the Housing Authority properties.  

PASSED AND APPROVED this 17th day of January, 2023. 

 

 

 

_________________________________ 

Allen L. Brown, Mayor 

ATTEST: 

 

 

____________________________________ 

Heather Soyars, City Clerk 

 

 

APPROVED: 

 

 

____________________________________ 

George Matteson, City Attorney 





















 

CITY OF TEXARKANA, AR 

BOARD OF DIRECTORS 

AGENDA TITLE: Adopt a Resolution Amending the FY2023 General Fund Budget to 

include the reallocation of FY2022 General Fund Budget for Road 

Projects. (PWD) Public Works Director Tyler Richards 

AGENDA DATE: 01/17/2023 

ITEM TYPE: Ordinance☐ Resolution☒ Other☐:  

DEPARTMENT: Public Works Department 

PREPARED BY: Tracie Lee, Assistant Public Works Director 

REQUEST: Adopt a Resolution Amending the FY2023 General Fund Budget to 

include the reallocation of FY2022 General Fund Budget funding for 

Road Projects. 

EMERGENCY CLAUSE: N/A 

SUMMARY: The planning figures for the FY2023 General Fund budget must be 

adjusted to include funding in the amount of $100,852.96 for Meadows 

Road project, and $624,633.75 for Union Road project.  During the 

FY2022 Budget process staff projected the projects would be completed 

however due to unforeseen circumstances the projects were delayed and 

will not be completed until 2023.  

The City Manager proposes to amend the budget to accept the expense 

of $725,486.71. 

EXPENSE REQUIRED: $725,486.71  

AMOUNT BUDGETED: $0.00 

APPROPRIATION 

REQUIRED: 

$100,852.96 for Meadows Road 

$624,633.75 for Union Road 

RECOMMENDED 

ACTION: 

City Manager and staff recommend board approval. 

EXHIBITS: New Resolution and old Resolution 2022-75  

 

 

  

 



RESOLUTION NO. _________ 

WHEREAS, it is necessary to amend the FY2023 General Fund Budget to include 

amounts previously included in the FY2022 General Fund Budget not utilized due to 

unforeseen circumstances and the projects were delayed for Meadows Road and Union 

Road Improvements; and  

WHEREAS, specifically, the total reallocation is $725,486.71, from the FY2022 

General Fund Budget for road projects; and  

WHEREAS, the City Manager and staff recommend approval of said budget 

amendment;    

WHEREAS, the funding allocation is not an additional allocation request but 

reallocation of funds that were included in the FY2022 General Fund Budget and projected 

to be spent in 2022 but were not completely spent at year end; and 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Board of Directors of the City 

of Texarkana, Arkansas, that the FY2023 General Fund Budget is amended to allocate 

$100,852.93 for the Meadows Road project and $624,633.75 for the Union Road project 

for a total allocation of $725,486.71, as described and for the purposes set forth above. 

PASSED AND APPROVED this 17th day of January, 2023. 

 

 

______________________________ 

Allen L. Brown, Mayor 

ATTEST: 

___________________________________ 

Heather Soyars, City Clerk 

  

APPROVED: 

___________________________________ 

George Matteson, City Attorney 



 

CITY OF TEXARKANA, AR 

BOARD OF DIRECTORS 

AGENDA TITLE: Adopt an Ordinance to prescribe a method to rotate the position of 

Assistant Mayor among the members of the Board of Directors and 

change to a one-year term in the following sequence: Ward 1, Ward 2, 

Ward 6, Ward 4, Ward 5, Ward 3. (BOD) (This item added at the request 

of Director Laney Harris) 

AGENDA DATE: January 27, 2023 

ITEM TYPE: Ordinance☒  Resolution☐  Other☐:  

DEPARTMENT: Board of Directors – Laney Harris 

PREPARED BY: Heather Soyars, City Clerk 

REQUEST: To rotate the position of Assistant Mayor among the members of the 

Board of Directors and change to a one-year term. 

EMERGENCY CLAUSE: N/A 

SUMMARY: Director Harris requested this agenda item to rotate the position of 

Assistant Mayor among the members of the Board of Directors and 

change to a one-year term in the following sequence: Ward 1, Ward 2, 

Ward 6, Ward 4, Ward 5, Ward 3. 

EXPENSE REQUIRED: N/A 

AMOUNT BUDGETED: N/A 

APPROPRIATION 

REQUIRED: 

N/A 

RECOMMENDED 

ACTION: 

Director Harris recommends Board approval. 

EXHIBITS: Ordinance, Director Harris’ request, A.C.A. §14-47-117 

 



ORDINANCE NO. _________ 

 AN ORDINANCE RENAMING THE POSITION 

OF VICE MAYOR AS ASSISTANT MAYOR AS 

CONTEMPLATED BY STATUTE AND 

ESTABLISHING A ROTATION ORDER FOR 

SAID POSITION; AND FOR OTHER PURPOSES 

 
WHEREAS, traditionally, every two years the Board of Directors elects from 

among their membership a “vice mayor” (being the same position as the position of 

“assistant mayor” contemplated by Ark. Code Ann. Section 14-47-117); and 

WHEREAS, said statutory provision allows for the establishment of a rotation 

structure for such position; and  

WHEREAS, the Board desires to establish a rotation order for such position as 

contemplated herein;  

NOW, BE IT ORDAINED by the Board of Directors of the City of Texarkana, 

Arkansas, that: 

Section 1.        Section 2-52 of the Code, being a provision likely contrary to 

applicable law (including, without limitation, Ark. Code Ann. 14-47-119) is deleted, and 

the following is substituted therefore: 

Sec. 2-52. – Assistant Mayor and Rotation of Assistant Mayor Position. 

a) The position traditionally known as “vice-mayor” is now formally 

designated and shall be hereafter known as “assistant mayor” and carry with 

it the powers and duties contemplated by Ark. Code. Ann. Section 14-47-

117, or any successor thereto.  

b) The position of assistant mayor shall be rotated among the membership of 

the board of directors as follows: 

1) Term. The assistant mayor's term shall be for one year commencing 

on the first day of January of each year. 

2) Rotation order. The assistant mayor's position shall be rotated 

among the directors in the following order: Ward 1, Ward 2, Ward 

6, Ward 4, Ward 5, Ward 3. At the first regular board meeting in 

January of each year, the mayor shall announce the director who will 

be serving as assistant mayor for that term. 



3) Succession. Should a director not desire or otherwise be unable to 

serve a term as assistant mayor, the next willing director in the 

rotation order shall serve. A director is not prohibited from serving 

two terms as assistant mayor but shall not serve two consecutive 

terms unless there is no other director willing to serve. 

4) Acting mayor. In the event that both the mayor and the assistant 

mayor should be absent or disabled from performing their duties, the 

next willing director in the rotation order shall serve as acting mayor 

during such absence or disability and no longer. This paragraph (4) 

shall have no effect on the provisions of (1), (2), or (3) above. 

c) The first term under the rotation structure (Ward 1) contemplated hereby 

shall commence January 1, 2023. 

PASSED AND APPROVED this 17th day of January, 2023.  

  

  
____________________________ 

Allen L. Brown, Mayor 

 ATTEST: 
  

______________________________ 

Heather Soyars, City Clerk 

  

APPROVED: 

  
______________________________ 

George Matteson, City Attorney 

  

 





 

CITY OF TEXARKANA, AR 

BOARD OF DIRECTORS 

AGENDA TITLE: Adopt an Ordinance repealing and superseding Ordinance No. 1-2023 

and to approve the purchase of four (4) 2023 Chevrolet Tahoe with 

police packages. (TAPD) Assistant Chief Bobby Jordon  

An emergency clause is requested. An emergency clause requires a 

separate and distinct vote of the board and is valid only if there is a 

two-thirds vote of approval by the Board. 

AGENDA DATE: January 17, 2023 

ITEM TYPE: Ordinance☒  Resolution☐  Other☐:  

DEPARTMENT: TAPD 

PREPARED BY: Assistant Chief Bobby Jordan 

REQUEST: This is a request to repeal Ordinance No. 1-2023 and to approve the 

purchase of police vehicles. 

EMERGENCY CLAUSE: Yes.   

SUMMARY: The original quote from the dealership was $41,200 per vehicle.  This 

was a misquote on the part of the dealership.  The amended quote is 

$41,700 per vehicle, which is an additional $2,000. 

TAPD is requesting the repeal of Ordinance No. 01-2023 and the 

approval of the purchase of police vehicles in the amount of 

$166,800.00.  (164,800.00 was approved with Ordinance No. 1-2023 

adopted by the Board of Directors on January 6, 2023.) 

EXPENSE REQUIRED: $166,800.00 

AMOUNT BUDGETED: $170,000 

APPROPRIATION 

REQUIRED: 

Included in 2023 Police Budget 

RECOMMENDED 

ACTION: 

City Manager and Police staff recommend approval 

EXHIBITS: Ordinance, Ordinance No. 1-2023, bid package 

 



ORDINANCE NO. ______ 

AN ORDINANCE REPEALING AND 

SUPERSEDING ORDINANCE NO. 1-2023; 

WAIVING COMPETITIVE BIDDING; 

APPROVING THE PURCHASE OF FOUR (4) 2023 

CHEVROLET TAHOE WITH POLICE 

PACKAGES; FOR DECLARING AN 

EMERGENCY; AND FOR OTHER PURPOSES 

 
WHEREAS, pursuant to Ordinance 1-2023 the Board of Directors waived 

competitive bidding for the reasons therein stated and approved the purchase of four (4) 

vehicles identified for a total purchase price of $164,800 (being $41,200.00 per vehicle); 

and  

WHEREAS, due to unintentional error on behalf of the vehicle dealer, the actual 

price per vehicle is $41,700.00, bringing the total purchase price of the four (4) vehicles to 

$166,800.00; and 

WHERERAS, in order to avoid confusion or concern regarding approval, and 

solely to document the actual expense amount, the Board desires to repeal and supersede 

Ordinance 1-2023 with this Ordinance; and  

WHEREAS, as was recognized in Ordinance 1-2023, Superior Chevrolet Buick 

GMC of Siloam Springs, Arkansas, is known throughout the state as typically ordering 

large quantities of these police package vehicles, which are special-order with unique 

features and not typically inventoried by dealerships; and 

WHEREAS, pursuant to Ark. Code Ann. §14-47-138, the Board of Directors may 

waive the requirements of competitive bidding in exceptional situations where competitive 

bidding is not feasible or practicable; and 

WHEREAS, funds are available as budgeted; and  



WHEREAS, the City Manager and Chief of Police request approval and, further, 

waiver of any applicable competitive bidding practices, all as and for the reasons described 

above;  

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED by the Board of Directors of the City 

of Texarkana, Arkansas, that: 

Section 1: Ordinance No 1-2023 is repealed, of no further force and superseded 

in its entirety by this Ordinance.   

Section 2.: The purchase of the four (4) vehicles on the corrected terms and 

conditions set out above are approved and any competitive bidding practices that may be 

otherwise required by applicable law or ordinance are waived. 

Section 3:    The City Manager is authorized to enter into any agreement 

reasonably necessary carry out the purchase hereby approved.     

Section 4: This action being necessary for the preservation of the public peace, 

health, and safety (including, without limitation, the immediate need to replace keep the 

fleet updated and operational to best serve the public safety interest of the City), and a 

separate and distinct vote having been taken on this emergency clause, an emergency is 

therefore declared to exist, and this ordinance shall be in full force and effect from and 

after its passage and approval. 

PASSED AND APPROVED this 17th day of January, 2023. 

 

 _____________________________ 

  Allen L. Brown, Mayor 

ATTEST: 
 

________________________________ 

Heather Soyars, City Clerk 

 

APPROVED: 

 

________________________________ 

George Matteson, City Attorney 



































































 

CITY OF TEXARKANA, AR 

BOARD OF DIRECTORS 

AGENDA TITLE: Adopt an Ordinance authorizing the City Manager to purchase a three-

year Microsoft Enterprise License Agreement for licenses used by all 

departments of the City of Texarkana, Arkansas, in an amount not to 

exceed the annual fee of $57,356.45. (TWU) IT Director Brandon 

Uselton 

An emergency clause is requested. An emergency clause requires a 

separate and distinct vote of the board and is valid only if there is a 

two-thirds vote of approval by the Board. 

AGENDA DATE: January 17, 2023 

ITEM TYPE: Ordinance☒  Resolution☐  Other☐:  

DEPARTMENT:  Texarkana Water Utilities – Information Technology 

PREPARED BY:  Brandon Uselton, IT Director, Texarkana Water Utilities 

REQUEST: Consider an ordinance authorizing the City Manager to purchase a three-

year Microsoft Enterprise License Agreement for licenses used by 

departments of the City of Texarkana, Arkansas in an amount not to 

exceed the annual fee of $57,356.45. 

EMERGENCY CLAUSE: Yes 

SUMMARY: The Texarkana Water Utilities (TWU) Information Technology (IT) 

Division is requesting the enterprise agreement proposal from SHI 

Government Solutions of Somerset, New Jersey for Microsoft licenses 

to be accepted, and authorizing the City Manager to negotiate a final 

enterprise agreement at a total cost over a three-year period not to exceed 

one hundred seventy two thousand, sixty-nine 35/100 dollars 

($172,069.35) with the Texarkana Arkansas annual cost not to exceed 

fifty-seven thousand, three hundred fifty-six 45/100 dollars 

($57,356.45). 

 

The IT Division of TWU budgets and requests software licenses for the 

computer systems of City of Texarkana, Arkansas; utilizing an 

Enterprise Agreement managed by TWU to purchase these licenses will 

allow for software consistency across departments.  The execution of 

this Enterprise Agreement will continue the maintenance on existing 

Microsoft licenses and the type and number of licenses to be acquired 

through this purchase agreement is shown on the attached document 

marked as Exhibit “A”.  TWU has received the following documents, 

from SHI Government Solutions of Austin, TX, for Microsoft licensing: 



a proposed Microsoft Enterprise Agreement Quote (Exhibit “A”),  

 

 The funds for the first-year payment have been appropriated in the City 

of Texarkana Arkansas General Fund, and funds for future payments are 

anticipated to be appropriated in the same fund.  Utility staff 

recommends approval. 

 

The total purchase cost is $172,069.35 and an exact purchase breakout 

of Texarkana, Arkansas costs are as follows:  

 

2023 $57,356.45 

2024 $57,356.45 

2025 $57,356.45 

Totals $172,069.35 
 

EXPENSE REQUIRED: $57,356.45 annually for 3 years 

AMOUNT BUDGETED: $57,356.45 (this fiscal year) 

APPROPRIATION 

REQUIRED: 

None 

RECOMMENDED 

ACTION: 

Utility Staff recommends approval.  

EXHIBITS:  Ordinance and A – SHI Quote  

 



ORDINANCE NO. _________ 

 AN ORDINANCE WAIVING COMPETITIVE 

BIDDING AND AUTHORIZING THE 

EXECUTION OF A MICROSOFT ENTERPRISE 

LICENSE AGREEMENT; DECLARING AN 

EMERGENCY; AND FOR OTHER PURPOSES 

  
WHEREAS, it is necessary to renew certain Microsoft Licenses utilized by the 

City; and 

WHEREAS, the Information Technology Division of Texarkana Water Utilities 

(TWU) is the facilitator of the agreement with Microsoft and the management agency for 

all Microsoft licenses used by the City of Texarkana, Arkansas; and 

WHEREAS, SHI Government Solutions of Somerset, New Jersey, a sole provider 

for the product, has purposed a three (3) year license agreement with the total cost of 

$172,069.35, which is anticipated to be paid out in three (3) equal annual installments of 

$57,356.45; and 

WHEREAS, because this purchase involves a unique product which is only 

available from a single source, an exceptional situation exists where it is not feasible or 

practical to utilize ordinary competitive bidding practices to make such purchase; and 

WHEREAS, the City Manager and staff recommends, that the competitive bidding 

practices otherwise required by applicable statute and ordinance be waived as permitted by 

Ark. Code. Ann. § 14-47-138 and § 2-27 of the City of Texarkana, Arkansas, Code of 

Ordinances and the execution of the three (3) year license agreement described herein be 

authorized; 

NOW, BE IT ORDAINED by the Board of Directors of the City of Texarkana, 

Arkansas, that: 

Section 1.        The competitive bidding practice as contemplated by applicable law 

and ordinance are waived and the City Manager is authorized to enter into a three (3) year 

license agreement with SHI Government Solutions for certain Microsoft licenses in the 



total amount of $172,069.35, of which the Texarkana, Arkansas, annual cost not to exceed  

$57,356.45 per year, over three (3) years provided, however, that the agreement provide 

for termination in the event funds are not budgeted for such purpose in any given year 

following this year.   

Section 2.        This action being necessary for the preservation of the public peace, 

health, and safety, to provide for continuity of operation without interruption, and a 

separate and distinct vote having been taken on this emergency clause, an emergency is 

therefore declared to exist, and this ordinance shall be in full force and effect from and 

after its passage and approval.  

PASSED AND APPROVED this 17th day of January, 2023.  

  

  

________________________________ 

Allen L. Brown, Mayor 

  

ATTEST: 

 

  

____________________________________ 

Heather Soyars, City Clerk 

  

 

APPROVED: 

 

  
____________________________________ 

George Matteson, City Attorney 

  

 



 

Pricing Proposal
Quotation #:   22662315
Reference #:  EA 82348542
Created On:   10/20/2022
Valid Until:   1/27/2023

 
TX-City of Texarkana Water Utilities   Microsoft Inside Account

Manager
 

Brandon Uselton
808 Olive Street
STE A
Texarkana, TX
United States
Phone: (903) 799 0287
Fax:  
Email: brandonu@txkusa.org

 

Shaina Walker
290 Davidson Avenue
Somerset, NJ 08873
Phone: 732-868-6191
Fax:
Email: Shaina_Walker@shi.com

All Prices are in US Dollar (USD) 
  Product Qty Your Price Total

 
1 CoreCALBridgeO365 ALNG SubsVL MVL PerUsr 
   Microsoft - Part#: AAA-12414 
   Contract Name: Microsoft Software VAR 
   Contract #: DIR-TSO-4092 
   Coverage Term: 2/1/2023 – 1/31/2024 
   Note: Year 1 of 3

245 $19.68 $4,821.60

 
2 O365GCCE1 ShrdSvr ALNG SubsVL MVL PerUsr 
   Microsoft - Part#: U4S-00002 
   Contract Name: Microsoft Software VAR 
   Contract #: DIR-TSO-4092 
   Coverage Term: 2/1/2023 – 1/31/2024 
   Note: Year 1 of 3

118 $85.44 $10,081.92

 
3 O365GCCE3 ShrdSvr ALNG SubsVL MVL PerUsr 
   Microsoft - Part#: AAA-11894 
   Contract Name: Microsoft Software VAR 
   Contract #: DIR-TSO-4092 
   Coverage Term: 2/1/2023 – 1/31/2024 
   Note: Year 1 of 3

127 $237.72 $30,190.44

 
4 WINENTperDVC ALNG UpgrdSAPk MVL 
   Microsoft - Part#: KV3-00381 
   Contract Name: Microsoft Software VAR 
   Contract #: DIR-TSO-4092 
   Coverage Term: 2/1/2023 – 1/31/2024 
   Note: Year 1 of 3

179 $66.31 $11,869.49

 
5 Win Remote Desktop Services CAL ALng SA DCAL 
   Microsoft - Part#: 6VC-01253 
   Contract Name: Microsoft Software VAR 
   Contract #: DIR-TSO-4092 
   Coverage Term: 2/1/2023 – 1/31/2024 
   Note: Year 1 of 3

20 $19.65 $393.00

 



Total $57,356.45

Additional Comments

Hardware items on this quote may be updated to reflect changes due to industry wide constraints and
fluctuations. 

Thank you for choosing SHI-GS! The pricing offered on this quote proposal is valid through the expiration date set
above. To ensure the best level of service, please provide End User Name, Phone Number, Email Address and
applicable Contract Number when submitting a Purchase Order. SHI Government Solutions, Inc. is 100% Minority
Owned, Woman Owned Business. TAX ID# 22-3695478; DUNS# 14-724-3096

The products offered under this proposal are resold in accordance with the terms and conditions of the Contract referenced under
that applicable line item.


	Top
	1.	Minutes
	item_01172023_ccd_minutes
	item_1_01032023_minutes

	2.	Housing Authority
	item_01172023_tapd_tha contact
	item_2_01172023_tapd_Resolution_THA
	item_01172023_tapd_tha contract

	3.	Reallocation for street projects
	item_3_01172023_pwd_reallocation street
	item_3_01172023_pwd_Resolution_reallocation street

	4.	Rotate Assistant Mayor
	item_01172023_bod_asst mayor
	item_5_01172023_bod_Ordinance_Assistant Mayor
	item_5_01172023_bod_asst mayor

	5.	amend ord no 1-2023 - tapd
	item_6_01172023_tapd_police vehicles
	item_6_01172023_tapd_Ordinance_police vehicles
	item_6_01172023_tapd_amend 1-2023 bid package
	item_6_01172023_tapd ord no. 1-2023

	6.	Microsoft license agreement
	item_01172023_twu_microsoft license  agr
	item_6_01172023_twu_Ordinance_Microsoft Enterprise License Agreement
	item_01172023_twu_micorsoft license quote

	Bottom

